
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2018 

 

7:00 P.M. 

1



FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE REDCLIFF TOWN COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
REDCLIFF TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 
 

 1. GENERAL  

  A) Call to Order  

  B) Adoption of Agenda Adoption 

Pg. 4  C) Accounts Payable For Information 

Pg. 6  D) Bank Summary to August 31, 2018 *  For Information 

 2. MINUTES  

Pg. 7  A) Council meeting held September 24, 2018 * For Adoption 

Pg. 12 B) Redcliff Library Board meeting held July 31, 2018 * 
 For Information 

Pg. 14 
C) Redcliff & District Recreation Services Board meeting  
 held October 1, 2018 * 
 

For Information 
 

 3. BYLAWS  

Pg. 18  A) Bylaw 1868/2018, Smoke-Free Bylaw * 3rd Reading 

  
4. REQUEST FOR DECISIONS  

Pg. 61 
 
A) Redcliff/Cypress Regional Waste Management Authority * 
 Re:  Loan Request 

For Consideration 

Pg. 68 B) Sewer Mains Closed Circuit Television Inspections * For Consideration 

Pg. 72 C) Redcliff Dart League * 
 Re:  Town of Redcliff Logo Use Request For Consideration 

Pg. 78 D) Sanitary Sewer Lift Station – 5th Avenue & 2nd Street * For Consideration 

  
5. POLICIES  

Pg. 81  A) Policy 138, Impairment at Work Policy * For Consideration 

  
6. CORRESPONDENCE  

Pg. 87 
 
 A) Alberta Municipal Affairs * 
  Re:  Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) 

For Information 

2



 7. OTHER  

Pg. 88  A) Redcliff/Cypress Regional Waste Management Authority * 
  Re:  Landfill Graphs to September 30, 2018 For Information 

Pg. 91 B) Council Important Meetings & Events October 9, 2018 * For Information 

  
8. RECESS  

 
 
 
9. IN CAMERA (Confidential Session) 

 

 A) Riverview Golf Course (FOIP Sec. 16)  

 B) Personnel (FOIP Sec. 24)  

 C) Intermunicipal Collaborative Framework (FOIP Sec. 21, 24)  

  
10. ADJOURN  

 

3



CHEQUE # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

83449 49 NORTH LUBRICANTS WASHER FLUID 159.29

83450 MIKE DAVIES TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT 90.00

83451 WADE GLEISNER NEW FIRE TRUCK TOOLS/SUPPLIES 316.03

83452 SHAW CABLESYSTEMS TOWN HALL INTERNET 146.90

83453 PUROLATOR FREIGHT 201.09

83454 REPSTAR AGENCIES FUEL TREATMENT 1,274.23

83455 RIVERVIEW GOLF CLUB MEALS ON WHEELS 955.50

83456 CARLA SPAMPINATO EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT OF SUPPLIES 148.40

83457 1158954 ALBERTA LTD UTILITY CREDIT REFUND 55.00

83458 WHOLESALE FIRE & RESCUE NEW FIRE TRUCK TOOLS/SUPPLIES 11,487.83

83459 WR MEADOWS ROAD REPAIR 2,461.35

83460 ZEP SALES & SERVICE CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,617.45

83461 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES BENEFITS 20,187.40

83462 BRUCE'S SEWER SERVICE PLUGGED SEWER LINE 341.25

83463 HAT AGRI SERVICE ARM, TIE ROD, SUPPORT KIT 614.49

83464 JACOB'S WELDING SNOW BRUSH ATTACHMENT REPAIR 210.00

83465 MEDICINE HAT CATHOLIC SCHOOL 2018 REQUISITION 183,447.16

83466 PRIME PRINTING BUSINESS CARDS 257.25

83467 PRO COMM SOLUTIONS SECURITY DOOR ACCESS EXPANSION 4,386.14

83468 PUROLATOR FREIGHT 39.14

83469 RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA YOKES, U-JOINTS, SCREWS 133.50

83470 DEVIN MCNEILL UTILITY CREDIT REFUND 114.67

83471 MELISSA WOODWORTH UTILITY CREDIT REFUND 100.00

83472 DALE WOOD FIREARMS SAFETY COURSE FEES 1,425.00

83473 WHITE ICE REPLACEMENT ARENA GLASS 1,842.86

83474 WORKERS COMPENSATION BOARD INSTALLMENT 7,403.98

83475 DERRIN THIBAULT CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK 65.00

TOTAL $239,480.91

EFT# VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

00953 ACTION PARTS CENTER LINK 179.38

00954 THE BOLT SUPPLY HOUSE WASHERS 60.69

00955 CANADIAN LINEN & UNIFORM SERVICE COVERALLS/TOWELS 36.10

00956 DIGITEX CANADA PHOTOCOPIER FEES 313.29

00957 FARMLAND SUPPLY CENTRE TEST FITTINGS FOR SWEEPER 35.07

00958 GAS CITY HYDRO VAC EXPOSING UTILITIES 4,016.26

00959 HOME HARDWARE NEW FIRE TRUCK TOOLS/SUPPLIES 2,564.66

00960 KIRKS TIRE ALIGNMENT & FLAT REPAIR 218.35

00961 MPE ENGINEERING WATER TREATMENT PLANT SERVICE CONTRACT 1,575.00

00962 RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA SIGNS, OFFICE SUPPLIES 212.79

00963 TRIPLE R EXPRESS FREIGHT 38.22

00964 CANADIAN LINEN & UNIFORM SERVICE COVERALLS/TOWELS 36.10

00965 CENTRAL SHARPENING SHARPEN ICE KNIFE 60.90

COUNCIL MEETING - OCTOBER 9, 2018

TOWN OF REDCLIFF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFERS

TOWN OF REDCLIFF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - CHEQUES

4



00966 GAR-TECH ELECTRICAL POOL PUMP DISCONNECTION 199.64

00967 HOME HARDWARE TOOLS, GENERAL SUPPLIES 99.56

00968 KIRKS TIRE ALIGNMENT & FLAT REPAIR 116.50

00969 LMT ENTERPRISES PROJECT 175 HOLDBACK RELEASE 5,959.41

00970 PARTEK IT SOLUTIONS HOSTED BACKUP 735.00

00971 RECREATION FACILITY PERSONNEL BUILDING LEVEL 2 COURSES 850.00

00972 ROSENEAU TRANSPORT FREIGHT 345.16

00973 SCHEFFER ANDREW PROJECT 175 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 1,029.00

00974 RON S ELECTRIC LIBRARY ELECTRICAL REPAIR 44.93

00975 BERTS VACUUM & EQUIPMENT RENTAL PAPER & GARBAGE BAGS 1,089.91

00976 WHITE FOX GROUP WATER TRUCK & WATER 559.13

00977 WOLSLEY MECHANICAL GROUP COUPLING 814.38

TOTAL $21,189.43

CHEQUE # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

00402 49 NORTH LUBRICANTS GREASE TUBES 448.94

00403 NANA & PAPA'S COIN LAUNDRY WASH COVERALLS 37.80

00404 RMA FUEL DYED DIESEL 1,454.66

00405 SHOCKWARE INTERNET 52.45

00406 TELUS MOBILITY CELL PHONE SERVICE 112.46

TOTAL $2,106.31

00020 FORTY MILE GAS CO-OP UTILITIES 149.29

00021 KIRKS TIRE FLAT TIRE REPAIR 59.85

00022 HOME HARDWARE CLEANING SUPPLIES 51.10

00023 RMA FUEL DYED DIESEL 2,371.81

00024 SUMMIT MOTORS FLEETRITE DEF 481.74

00025 TRIPLE R EXPRESS FREIGHT 69.30

TOTAL $3,183.09

REDCLIFF/CYPRESS LANDFILL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - CHEQUES

REDCLIFF/CYPRESS LANDFILL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER

5



ATB GENERAL ATB LANDFILL
5.12.02.121.000 5.99.02.121.000

TOWN LANDFILL

BALANCE FORWARD 2,005,876.23 717,542.43

DAILY DEPOSITS 275,192.55 75,361.04
DIRECT DEPOSITS 426,484.60 199,474.00
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 0.00 0.00
INTEREST 3,298.53 1,328.56
OTHER DEPOSITS 45,717.25 116.25
SUBTOTAL 750,692.93 276,279.85

PAYMENTS 617,157.19 143,648.42
ASFF QUARTERLY PAYMENTS 0.00 0.00
DEBENTURE PAYMENTS 5,096.13 0.00
OTHER WITHDRAWALS 211,615.23 289.89
SUBTOTAL (833,868.55) (143,938.31)

TOTAL 1,922,700.61 849,883.97

BANK STATEMENT ENDING BALANCE 1,927,038.83 850,315.11
OUTSTANDING CHEQUES ( - ) (5,188.31) (1,443.64)
DEPOSITS IN TRANSIT ( + ) 850.09 1,012.50

TOTAL 1,922,700.61 849,883.97

TOTAL CASH

CIBC WOOD GUNDY PORTFOLIO (TOWN) 5.12.02.321.001 23,879,764.00
CIBC WOOD GUNDY PORTFOLIO (LANDFILL) 5.99.02.321.001 494,944.00

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 24,374,708.00

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 27,147,292.58

INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH ACCOUNTS

2,772,584.58

TOWN OF REDCLIFF
BANK SUMMARIES FOR AUGUST 31, 2018

6



Council Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2018                                                                        Page      8788 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE REDCLIFF TOWN COUNCIL 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
PRESENT: Mayor D. Kilpatrick 
 Councillors S. Gale, L. Leipert  
   E. Solberg, J. Steinke 
  
 Municipal Manager A. Crofts (arrived at 7:23 p.m.) 
 Manager of Legislative S. Simon   
  & Land Services  
  
 Director of Community & D. Thibault  
  Protective Services  
 Director of Planning & J. Johansen 
  Engineering  
 Planning Specialist J. Zukowski 
   
 
ABSENT: Councillors: C. Crozier, C. Czember  
 
 

   1. GENERAL 
 

 Call to Order A)  Mayor Kilpatrick called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. 
 

2018-0357 
 
 

Adoption of Agenda B)  Councillor Gale moved the Agenda be adopted as 
presented.  - Carried. 
 

2018-0358 Accounts Payable C)  Councillor Solberg moved the accounts payables for the 
Town of Redcliff and Redcliff/Cypress Regional Waste 
Management Authority, be received for information.  - Carried. 
 
 

  2.  PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 Bylaw 1868/2018, Smoke- 
Free Bylaw  

A)  Mayor Kilpatrick called the Public Hearing for Bylaw 
1868/2018, Smoke-Free Bylaw, to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
No one present in the gallery requested to speak.   
 
Manager of Legislative & Land Services confirmed no persons 
submitted any comments.   
 
There were no further comments or questions from Council 
members. 
 
Mayor Kilpatrick declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:02 
p.m. 
 

7



Council Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2018                                                                        Page      8789 
 
 
 Bylaw 1869/2018, Park, 

Recreational & Public Areas 
Bylaw  

B)  Mayor Kilpatrick called the Public Hearing for Bylaw 
1869/2018, Park, Recreational & Public Areas Bylaw, to order 
at 7:03 p.m. 
 
No one present in the gallery requested to speak.   
 
Manager of Legislative & Land Services confirmed no persons 
submitted any comments.   
 
There were no further comments or questions from Council 
members. 
 
Mayor Kilpatrick declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:04 
p.m. 
 

 Bylaw 1870/2018, Business 
License Bylaw  

C)  Mayor Kilpatrick called the Public Hearing for Bylaw 
1870/2018, Business License Bylaw, to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
No one present in the gallery requested to speak.   
 
Manager of Legislative & Land Services confirmed no persons 
submitted any comments.   
 
There were no further comments or questions from Council 
members. 
 
Mayor Kilpatrick declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:04 
p.m. 
 
 

  3. MINUTES 
 

2018-0359 Council meeting held 
September 10, 2018 

A)  Councillor Gale moved the minutes of the Council meeting 
held September 10, 2018, be adopted as presented.  - Carried.  
 

2018-0360 Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting held 
September 19, 2018 
 

B)  Councillor Leipert moved the minutes of the Municipal 
Planning Commission meeting held September 19, 2018, be 
received for information.  - Carried. 
 

2018-0361 Redcliff Family & Community 
Support Services meeting 
held September 11, 2018 
 

C)  Councillor Gale moved the minutes of the Redcliff Family & 
Community Support Services meeting held September 11, 
2018, be received for information.  - Carried. 
 

2018-0362 Redcliff/Cypress Regional 
Waste Management Authority 
meeting held September 6, 
2018 
 

D)  Councillor Leipert moved the minutes of the Redcliff / 
Cypress Regional Waste Management Authority meeting held 
September 6, 2018, be received for information.  - Carried. 
 
 
 
 

8



Council Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2018                                                                        Page      8790 
 
 
2018-0363 Municipal Development Plan 

Steering Committee meeting 
held September 19, 2018 

E)  Councillor Steinke moved the minutes of the Municipal 
Development Plan Steering Committee meeting held 
September 19, 2018, be received for information.  - Carried. 
 
 

  4. BYLAWS 
 

2018-0364 Bylaw 1868/2018, Smoke- 
Free Bylaw 

A)  Councillor Solberg moved Bylaw 1868/2018, Smoke-Free 
Bylaw, be given second reading.  - Carried.   
 

2018-0365 Bylaw 1869/2018, Park, 
Recreational & Public Areas 
Bylaw 

B)  Councillor Solberg moved Bylaw 1869/2018, Park, 
Recreational & Public Areas Bylaw, be given second reading 
as amended. - Carried.   
 

2018-0366  Councillor Leipert moved Bylaw 1869/2018, Park, Recreational 
& Public Areas Bylaw, be given third reading.  - Carried.   
 

2018-0367 Bylaw 1870/2018, Business 
License Bylaw 

C)  Councillor Leipert moved Bylaw 1870/2018, Business 
License Bylaw, be given second reading as amended.   
- Carried.   
 

2018-0368  Councillor Gale moved Bylaw 1870/2018, Business License 
Bylaw, be given third reading.  - Carried.   
 

2018-0369 
 
 

Bylaw 1872/2018, Fees, 
Rates & Charges Bylaw 

D)  Councillor Steinke moved Bylaw 1872/2018, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 1865/2018 Fees Rates & Charges Bylaw, 
be given first reading.  – Carried. 
 

2018-0370 
 
 

 Councillor Gale moved Bylaw 1872/2018, being an amendment 
to Bylaw 1865/2018 Fees Rates & Charges Bylaw, be given 
second reading.  – Carried. 
 

2018-0371 
 
 

 Councillor Leipert moved Bylaw 1872/2018, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 1865/2018 Fees Rates & Charges Bylaw, 
be presented for third reading.  – Carried Unanimously. 
 

2018-0372 
 
 

 Councillor Solberg moved Bylaw 1872/2018, being an 
amendment to Bylaw 1865/2018 Fees Rates & Charges Bylaw, 
be given third reading.  – Carried. 
 
 

  5. REQUEST FOR DECISIONS 
 

2018-0373 Strategic Plan A)  Councillor Gale moved to adopt the strategic plan 
summary, including the vision, mission, goals, and strategies 
as presented and further direct administration to prepare a 
subsequent Operational Plan.  - Carried. 
 
 
 
 

9



Council Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2018                                                                        Page      8791 
 
 
  6. POLICIES 

2018-0374 Policy 092, Recognition 
Policy 
 

A)  Councillor Steinke moved Policy 092, Recognition Policy, 
be approved as presented. - Carried. 
 
Municipal Manager arrived at 7:23 p.m. 
 

2018-0375 Policy 102, Perimeter Fence 
Adjacent to Parks & Public 
Reserves Policy 
 

B)  Councillor Leipert moved Policy 102, Perimeter Fence 
Adjacent to Parks & Public Reserves Policy, be approved as 
presented. - Carried. 
 

2018-0376 Policy 120, Social Media 
Policy 
 

C)  Councillor Gale moved Policy 120, Social Media Policy, be 
approved as presented. - Carried. 
 
 

  7. CORRESPONDENCE 

2018-0377 Alberta Municipal Affairs 
Re:  Municipal Sustainability 
Initiative 

A)  Councillor Leipert moved correspondence from Alberta 
Municipal Affairs dated August 28, 2018 regarding the 
Municipal Sustainability Initiative, be received for information. 
- Carried. 
 

2018-0378 Alberta Recreation & Parks 
Association 
Re:  Greener Facilities 
Conference & Expo 

B)  Councillor Steinke moved correspondence from Alberta 
Recreation & Parks Association dated August 29, 2018 
regarding the Greener Facilities Conference & Expo, be 
received for information.  - Carried. 
 
 

  8. OTHER 

2018-0379 Memo to Council - Review of 
an Order to Remedy 
Unsightly Property 
Re:  638 – 2 Street SE (Lots 
39-40, Block 8, Plan 1117V) 
 

A)  Councillor Solberg moved the Memo to Council - Review of 
an Order to Remedy Unsightly Property dated September 24, 
2018 regarding 638 – 2 Street SE (Lots 39-40, Block 8, Plan 
1117V), be received for information.  - Carried.   

2018-0380 
 
 
 

Municipal Manager Report to 
Council September 24, 2018 
 

B)  Councillor Gale moved the Municipal Manager Report to 
Council September 24, 2018, be received for information. 
- Carried. 
 

2018-0381 Council Important Meetings & 
Events September 24, 2018 

C)  Councillor Leipert moved the Council Important Meetings & 
Events September 24, 2018, be received for information. 
- Carried. 
 
 

 
 

 9. RECESS 
 

  No recess was called.   
 
 
 

10



Council Meeting Minutes – September 24, 2018                                                                        Page      8792 
 
 
  10. IN CAMERA (Confidential Session) 

  No In Camera Session.  
 
 

  11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

2018-0382 Adjournment Councillor Steinke moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:47 p.m. 
- Carried. 
 
 
 

                  ________________________________________ 
   Mayor 
  

 
                 ________________________________________ 

   Manager of Legislative & Land Services 
 

11



12



13



REDCLIFF AND DISTRICT RECREATION SERVICES BOARD 
Town Council Chambers Town Office 

October 2nd, 2018 at 7:00 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT: 
 

Chairperson 
Town of Redcliff Rep. 
 
 
 
 
 
Community & Protective 
 Services 
 

Justin Getz 
Shawna Gale 
Karen Worrell 
Sharon Kirvan 
Shane Hok 
Christina McNeil 
 
Tracey Jenkins 
Derrin Thibault 
 
 

   
    

1. GENERAL 

a. Meeting called to order at 7:03 pm.   

b. Shawna Gale moved the agenda be adopted as presented – Carried. 
 

2. MINUTES 

a. Karen Worrell moved the minutes from September 4th, 2018 meeting be adopted as presented – 
Carried. 

3. DELEGATION - None 

4. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Staff Update presented by Tracey Jenkins  

Shawna Gale moved the staff update as presented be received for information – Carried. 

b. Fee’s, Rates and Charges Bylaw Review  

Shane Hok moved the following proposed amendments to the fees, rates and charges 
applicable to Community Services portion of Bylaw 1865/2018 Fees Rates and Charges Bylaw 
be forwarded to Council for consideration: - Carried 

 

14



Redcliff and District Recreation Services Board Meeting Minutes – October 2nd, 2018             Page 2 

  

 

              

 

 

 

 

15



Redcliff and District Recreation Services Board Meeting Minutes – October 2nd, 2018             Page 3 

  

 

              

 

 

 

16



Redcliff and District Recreation Services Board Meeting Minutes – October 2nd, 2018             Page 4 

  

 

              

 

 

 

 

 

c. Fall Festival Recap  

Christina McNeil moved the Fall Festival Recap be received for information – Carried. 

 

d. Golf Course discussion 

Karen Worrell moved that the Riverview Golf Course discussion be received as information – 
Carried. 

5. NEW BUSINESS - None 

6. REQUESTS FOR DECISION - None 

7. CORRESPONDENCE – None 

8. UPCOMING MEETINGS/CONFERENCE/WORKSHOPS  

a. ARPA – Oct. 25, 26, 27 Jasper Conference & Energize Workshop 

Derrin was asked to: 
 Check for funding 
 Check for Membership requirements 
 Check for availability 

 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – Monday November 5th, 2018 

10. ADJOURN 

a. Christina McNeil moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:10pm – Carried. 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



BYLAW NO. 1868/2018 
TOWN OF REDCLIFF 

A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF REDCLIFF, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO REGULATE 
PUBLIC PLACES AND WORKPLACES WITHIN THE TOWN OF REDCLIFF TO BE SMOKE-
FREE.  

WHEREAS pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, Council may 
pass a Bylaw respecting the safety, health and welfare of people, and the protection of people and 
property, and for purposes respecting nuisances.  
AND WHEREAS it has been determined second-hand smoke produced from tobacco 
consumption, cannabis consumption, vaping, and other similar activities can be a nuisance and is 
a health hazard for inhabitants of the Town of Redcliff.  

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Redcliff, duly assembled, deem it is in the best interest 
of promoting the health, safety and welfare of the public to regulate the locations where vaping and 
the smoking of tobacco, cannabis, and related substances can occur within the municipal 
corporate limits. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Redcliff in open meeting assembled, enacts as 
follows: 

PART 1 
SHORT TITLE & DEFINITIONS 

SHORT TITLE 

 This Bylaw may be cited as the "Smoke-Free Bylaw". 

DEFINITIONS 

 The following Acts and Regulations are referenced in this Bylaw and are referred to in this 
Bylaw by their short title as listed below: 

 Act or Regulation Short Title 

(a)  Controlled Drugs and Substances Act, R.S.C. 1996, 
Chapter 19, and its regulations, as amended or 
replaced 

Controlled Drugs and 
Substances Act 

(b)  Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000 
Chapter P-34,and its regulations, as amended or 
replaced 

Provincial Offences 
Procedure Act 

(c)  Alberta Gaming, Liquor and Cannabis Act, R.S.A 
2000, Chapter G-1, and its regulations, as amended 
or replaced  

Gaming, Liquor and 
Cannabis Act  

25



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 2 of 8 

(d)  Alberta Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act, 
R.S.A. 2005, Chapter T-3.8, and its regulations, as 
amended or replaced  

Alberta Tobacco and 
Smoking Reduction Act 

DEFINITIONS 

 Any word or expression that is specifically defined in the Acts and Regulations listed in 
Section (2) are adopted for the purposes of the interpretation and application of this Bylaw 
and have the same meaning under this Bylaw as defined in those statutes, unless 
otherwise specifically defined differently in this Bylaw or unless the context necessarily 
implies a different meaning. 

 In this Bylaw: 

(a) BYLAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER means a person appointed by Council as a 
Bylaw Enforcement Officer for the Town or their designate; 

(b) CAMPGROUND  means any area designated by Council as a site intended for use 
by camping accommodation units on a temporary basis. 

(c) CANNABIS has the same meaning as in the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act.  

(d) COMMON ACCESS DOOR means a building access and or egress door that may 
be used by the public or workers to access a Public Place or Workplace. 

(e) COUNCIL means the duly elected and sworn in Council of the Town.  

(f) DESIGNATED SMOKING AREA means a specified area where Smoking is 
permitted and which Minors are not permitted to enter.  

(g) DISPOSE means the dumping, discharging, throwing, dropping, discarding, 
abandoning, spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting or emptying of any 
substance or material.  

(h) HOTEL means an overnight accommodation facility, including an inn, guesthouse or 
bed and breakfast. 

(i) LICENSED PREMISES means licensed premises as defined under the Gaming, 
Liquor and Cannabis Act, including an outdoor eating or drinking area that is part of 
or operated in conjunction with the premises. 

(j) MINOR means a person under the age of 18 years. 

(k) MUNICIPAL BUILDING means any of the buildings owned, leased, operated or 
occupied by the Town. 

(l) MANAGER means a Person appointed to the position of Chief Administrative 
Officer for the Town by Council and known as the Municipal Manager. 

  

26



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 3 of 8 

(m) PARK AND RECREATIONAL AREA means any indoor or outdoor space 
controlled, developed, or designated by the Town to be used for rest, recreation, 
exercise, pleasure, amusement, or enjoyment, including a public park, playground, 
sports field, campground common area, recreational area, pool, arena, skate or 
bicycle park, ice rink, water playground, court, or pathway in the trail system, but 
excludes individual campsites.  

(n) PEACE OFFICER means Peace Officer as defined in Provincial Offences 
Procedure Act. 

(o) PERSON means any corporation, firm, partnership, association or registered 
company, as well as a natural Person. 

(p) PRIVATE RESIDENCE means a self-contained living premise for domestic use of 
one or more persons and is provided with a separate private entrance from the 
exterior of a building or from a common hall, lobby or stairway. A Private 
Residence also includes an individual campsite in a campground.  

(i) a Private Residence is a Workplace if a home business is operated from the 
residence only at the time when employees or patrons who do not live in the 
residence are present; and  

(ii) only that part of a Private Residence in which the business is operated is a 
Workplace for the purposes of this Bylaw. 

(q) PROPRIETOR means the owner, tenant, or occupant of a property or part of a 
property or their agent or representative, and includes any Person in charge thereof 
or any Person who controls, manages, governs or directs the activity carried on 
therein. 

(r) PUBLIC VEHICLE means transit buses, school buses, chartered buses, Town 
vehicles, and taxis, except when the only person in the taxi is the taxi driver. 

(s) PUBLIC PLACE means all or any part of a property, building, structure, or other 
indoor or outdoor area to which members of the public have access as of right or by 
express or implied invitation including:  

(i) Common areas of a multi-unit residential facility, including parks, patios, pools, 
other recreation areas and enclosed parking garages; 

(ii) An outdoor bus or taxi shelter; 

(iii) School buildings, grounds, and parking areas;  

(iv) Licensed Premises; 

(v) Restaurants; 

(vi) Outdoor areas of a Restaurant, such as a patio, where eating or consumption 
of alcohol is permitted; 

(vii) Hotels; 

(viii) Park and Recreational Areas; 

(ix) Libraries;  

27



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 4 of 8 

(x) Municipal Buildings;  

(xi) Public entrances to multi-unit residential facilities, public buildings, Licensed 
Premises, Restaurants, Hotels, Workplaces, and commercial buildings; and 

(xii) A walkway, patio, or deck on the site of a Public Place used by the public to 
access the Public Place;  

but does not include a Private Residence, sidewalk, roadway, or street, or parking 
lot. 

(t) RESTAURANT means a place where food or beverages are prepared for 
consumption on the premises. 

(u) SMOKE OR SMOKING means to inhale, exhale, burn, smoke, vape, hold, or 
otherwise have control over a lit or active cigarette, e-cigarette, vapourizer, cigar, 
pipe, hookah pipe, or other lighted or heated device or apparatus designed to burn 
or heat tobacco, cannabis, shisha, e-liquid, concentrate, dried herb, or any other 
substance for the purpose of inhaling or tasting omissions; irrespective of whether 
the Person is inhaling or exhaling the smoke or vapour emitted from it. 

(v) TOWN means the municipal corporation of the Town of Redcliff or the area 
contained within the Town boundaries as the context requires. 

(w) WORKPLACE means all or any part of a property, building, structure or other 
enclosed area in which employees perform the duties of their employment, whether 
or not members of the public have access to the building, structure or area as of 
right or by express or implied invitation, and includes reception areas, corridors, 
lobbies, stairwells, elevators, escalators, eating areas, washrooms, lounges, storage 
areas, laundry rooms, enclosed parking garages, walkways and decks on the site 
used to access the Workplace, and work vehicles. 

PART 2 
REGULATIONS 

SMOKING PROHIBITED 

 No person shall Smoke in a:  

(a) Public Place; 

(b) Public Vehicle; 

(c) vehicle with a Minor;   

(d) Workplace; or 

(e) Within 10 metres (approximately 32 feet) of:  

(i) The boundary of a Park and Recreational Area; or  

(ii) Any entrance, exit, doorway, openable window, or air intake of a Public Place 
or Workplace; 

Regardless of whether or not a “No Smoking” sign is posted or visible.  

28



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 5 of 8 

 No Proprietor shall permit smoking in any place listed previously in Section (5), whether or 
not a “No Smoking” sign is posted or visible. 

SMOKING PERMITTED 

 Smoking is permitted, unless otherwise stated in this Bylaw: 

(a) In a Private Residence; 

(b) Along a sidewalk, roadway, or street;  

(c) In a parking lot; and 

(d) In a Designated Smoking Area.  

DESIGNATED SMOKING AREAS 
 A Proprietor, at their discretion, may apply for a Development Permit to create a 

Designated Smoking Area in a Public Place or Workplace.  

 A Designated Smoking Area must: 

(a) Be screened from the view of the general public, 

(b) Not be closed in by a roof or ceiling and walls that prevent natural air circulation;  

(c) Be equipped with one or more doors which are kept closed except when actually in 
use for ingress or egress; 

(d) Be 10 metres (approximately 32 feet) from any Common Access Door, openable 
window, or air intake of a Public Place or Workplace; and 

(e) Not include food or beverage service. 

(f) Not have cleanup or trash removed while smoking is permitted. 

 Notwithstanding sections (5)(e) and (9)(d), a Designated Smoking Area may be placed 
within 3 metres (approximately 10 feet) of a door provided that: 

(a) The door is not a Common Access Door to the Public Place or Workplace; 

(b) Warning signs are posted on or adjacent to the door on the side that is away from 
the Designated Smoking Area, that the door opens to a Designated Smoking 
Area; 

(c) The door has a functioning automatic closer and is only open when the door is being 
used for access and egress from the Designated Smoking Area; and 

(d) The door is in an area that is at least 5 metres (approximately 16 feet) away where 
Minors are permitted on the side of the door away from the Designated Smoking 
Area.  

 No Proprietor shall permit a Minor to enter a Designated Smoking Area. 

SIGNAGE 

 A Proprietor shall ensure that signs indicating smoking is prohibited are conspicuously and 
continuously posted, and clearly visible and legible to all persons entering the property. 

29



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 6 of 8 

 A Proprietor of a property or part of a property in which smoking is permitted shall ensure 
signs indicating a Designated Smoking Area are conspicuously and continuously posted, 
and clearly visible and legible to all persons entering the property or part of the property.  

 Only a Proprietor or a Person acting under the Proprietor’s instructions shall remove, 
alter, deface, conceal or destroy a sign that is posted or displayed under this Bylaw. 

LITTERING 

 No Person shall Dispose of or allow the Disposing of any product or substance, or part of 
a product or substance, Smoked or used to Smoke, anywhere in the Town, other than in: 

(a) a garbage receptacle provided for the containment of litter for material that is not 
burning, or 

(b) In a special receptacle provided for and marked for the receiving of burning 
materials.  

PART 3 
OFFENCES & PENALTIES 

OFFENCES  

 Any Person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an offense punishable 
by issuance of either a summons/violation ticket (Part 2) or an offense notice/violation ticket 
(Part 3) in accordance with the provisions of the Provincial Offenses Procedure Act of 
Alberta as amended.  

PENALTIES 

 A ticket issued under section (16) shall: 

(a) state the provision of this Bylaw alleged to have been contravened; and 

(b) state the fine set out in Schedule “A” to this Bylaw. 

 A ticket shall be deemed to be sufficiently served for the purposes of this Section if: 

(a) Served personally on the Person alleged to have contravened the provision of this 
Bylaw set out in the violation notice; 

(b) Mailed to the address of any registered owner of the vehicle in respect of which the 
offence is alleged to have been committed, in which case service is deemed to have 
occurred on the seventh day after mailing of the violation notice, the day of mailing 
excluded; or  

(c) Attached to or left upon the vehicle in respect of which the offence is alleged to have 
been committed. 

30



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 7 of 8 

GENERAL 

 Each separate provision of this Bylaw shall be deemed to be independent of all other 
provisions and if any provision of this Bylaw is deemed or declared to be invalid by a Court 
of competent jurisdiction, then all other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and 
enforceable. 

 When there is a conflict between a provision of this Bylaw and the Alberta Tobacco and 
Smoking Reductions Act, the more restrictive provision prevails. 

 It is the intention of Council that if any portion of this Bylaw be declared invalid by a Court of 
competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this 
Bylaw shall remain valid and enforceable. 

 If any provision of the Bylaw provides for an exception or an exemption, the onus or burden 
of establishing the exception or exemption in any Court proceedings shall be on the person 
charged with the offence under the Bylaw. 

 

READ a first time this 10th day of September 2018 A.D.  

READ a second time this 24th day of September 2018 A.D,  

READ a third time this _________ day of ____________________ 2018 A.D,  

PASSED and SIGNED this _____ day of ____________________ A.D, 2018 

 

 MAYOR 

 

 MANAGER OF LEGISLATIVE & LAND 
SERVICES 

 
 
 
  

31



Bylaw No. 1868/2018 - Smoke-Free Bylaw   Page 8 of 8 

Schedule “A”: Fines 

Nature of Offence Section Penalty 

Smoking in a prohibited area  (5) $100.00 

Proprietor allowing Smoking in a prohibited area (6) $500.00 

Designated Smoking Area not set up or located in adherence 
with the regulations of this bylaw. (8), (9), (10) $1,000.00 

Per incident of a Proprietor allowing a Minor to enter a 
Designated Smoking Area (11) $100.00 

Proprietor allowing the serving beverages or food in a 
Designated Smoking Area (9)(e) $250.00 

Proprietor allowing Persons under his employ to clean up the 
Designated Smoking Area or remove trash from the 
Designated Smoking Area while smoking is permitted. 

(9)(f) $250.00 

Failure to comply with no Smoking signage requirements  (12), (14) $50.00 

Failure to comply with Designated Smoking Area signage 
requirements 

(10)(b), (13), 
(14) $250.00 

Improper disposal of Smoking products or substances 
including starting a fire or spilling of substances. (15) $500.00 

 

32



 

 

© Published by Alberta Queen’s Printer 

E-mail: qp@gov.ab.ca 
Shop on-line at www.qp.alberta.ca 

Alberta Queen’s Printer 
Suite 700, Park Plaza 
10611 - 98 Avenue 

Edmonton, AB T5K 2P7 
Phone: 780-427-4952 
Fax: 780-452-0668 

Province of Alberta  

 
 
 
 
 

Office Consolidation 

Statutes of Alberta, 2005 
Chapter T-3.8 

 
Current as of June 27, 2018 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING 
REDUCTION ACT 

 

33



Copyright and Permission Statement 

Alberta Queen's Printer holds copyright on behalf of the Government of Alberta 
in right of Her Majesty the Queen for all Government of Alberta legislation.  
Alberta Queen's Printer permits any person to reproduce Alberta’s statutes and 
regulations without seeking permission and without charge, provided due 
diligence is exercised to ensure the accuracy of the materials produced, and 
Crown copyright is acknowledged in the following format: 

© Alberta Queen's Printer, 20__.* 

*The year of first publication of the legal materials is to be completed. 

Note 

All persons making use of this consolidation are reminded that it has no 
legislative sanction, that amendments have been embodied for convenience of 
reference only. The official Statutes and Regulations should be consulted for all 
purposes of interpreting and applying the law. 

Amendments Not in Force 

This consolidation incorporates only those amendments in force on the current as 
of date shown on the cover. It does not include the following amendments: 

2013 c24  s3(c), (d), and (e) amends s1, s4(a) amends s3, s6 amends s5, s7 
amends s6, s8(a) amends s7, s19(b), (c), (d)(e.4), (f)(g.2) amends s9(1), s20 
amends s10, s22 amends ss3.1(1), 8.1, 8.2 and repeals and substitutes s8.3. 

Regulations 

The following is a list of the regulations made under the Tobacco Reduction Act 
that are filed as Alberta Regulations under the Regulations Act   

Alta. Reg. Amendments 

Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act 

Tobacco and Smoking Reduction ................... 240/2007 ......... 4/2008, 24/2008, 
 169/2013, 201/2014 

34



 1

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 

Chapter T-3.8 

Table of Contents 

 1 Definitions 

 2 Exclusions 

 3 Smoking prohibited 
 3.1 Prohibition re minors 
 4 Private residence 

 5 Exceptions 

 6 Duties of managers 

 7 Signs 
 7.1 Tobacco not to be displayed 

 7.2 Tobacco not to be advertised or promoted 
 7.21 Minimum package size 
 7.3 Sale of tobacco in certain places prohibited 
 7.4 Sale of flavoured tobacco products prohibited 
 7.5 Furnishing tobacco products to a minor 
 8 Offences 
 8.1 Description of offence — smoking 
 8.11 Description of offence — possession or consuming 

 8.2 Testimony of witness 
 8.21 Testimony of witness —  offence by minor 
 8.3 Inference of tobacco product 
 8.31 Inference in respect of age 
 8.32 Certificate or report of analysis 
 8.4 Prohibition order 
 8.5 Directors, etc. of corporations 

 8.6 Vicarious liability 
 9 Regulations 

 10 Municipal by-laws 

 11 Crown bound 

 12 Repeal 
 12.1 Review 
 13 Commencement 

35



  2005 
Section 1  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

2

HER MAJESTY, by and with the advice and consent of the 
Legislative Assembly of Alberta, enacts as follows: 

Definitions 

1   In this Act, 

 (a) “advertise” means to use any commercial communication, 
through any media or other means, that is intended to have 
or is likely to have the effect of 

 (i) creating an awareness of or association with a tobacco 
product, a brand of tobacco product or a manufacturer or 
seller of a tobacco product, or 

 (ii) promoting the purchase or use of a tobacco product or a 
brand of tobacco product; 

 (a.1) “group living facility” means 

 (i) a facility for the long-term care of veterans, 

 (ii) a nursing home under the Nursing Homes Act, 

 (iii) a facility as defined under the Mental Health Act, 

 (iv) a residential facility operated to provide accommodation 
and maintenance for unemployed or indigent adults only, 
or 

 (v) a supportive living accommodation licensed under the 
Supportive Living Accommodation Licensing Act; 

 (b) “hotel” includes an inn, a guesthouse and a bed-and-
breakfast facility; 

 (c) “licensed premises” means licensed premises as defined 
under the Gaming, Liquor and Cannabis Act including an 
outdoor eating or drinking area that is part of or operated in 
conjunction with the premises; 

 (d) “manager” means an employer or other person who, directly 
or indirectly, controls, directs or is responsible for a place or 
who controls the activities in the place; 

 (d.1) “Minister” means the Minister determined under section 16 
of the Government Organization Act as the Minister 
responsible for this Act; 

 (e) “minor” means a person who is under 18 years of age; 

36



  2005 
Section 1  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

3

 (e.01) “peace officer” means a peace officer as defined in the 
Provincial Offences Procedure Act; 

 (e.1) “pharmacy” means a pharmacy as defined in the Pharmacy 
and Drug Act; 

 (e.2) “promote” means to use any commercial act or practice that 
is intended to encourage or is likely to encourage the 
purchase or use of a tobacco product or a brand of tobacco 
product or to create an awareness of or association with a 
tobacco product, a brand of tobacco product or a 
manufacturer or seller of a tobacco product; 

 (f) “public place” means all or any part of a building, structure 
or other enclosed area to which members of the public have 
access as of right or by express or implied invitation 
including  

 (i) the common areas of a multi-unit residential facility, 
including patios, pools, other recreation areas and 
enclosed parking garages, 

 (ii) a group living facility, 

 (iii) an outdoor bus or taxi shelter,  

 (iv) licensed premises, 

 (v) a restaurant, and 

 (vi) a hotel; 

 (g) “public vehicle” means a bus, taxi or other vehicle that is 
used to transport members of the public for a fee; 

 (h) “restaurant” includes a coffee shop, cafeteria, sandwich 
stand, food court, any other eating establishment and an 
outdoor eating area that is part of or operated in conjunction 
with the restaurant; 

 (h.1) “retailer” means a person engaged in a business that 
includes the sale of tobacco products; 

 (i) “smoke” means to smoke, hold or otherwise have control 
over a lit tobacco product; 

 (j) “tobacco product” means a product composed in whole or in 
part of tobacco, including tobacco leaves and any extract of 
tobacco leaves, but does not include any product for use in 
nicotine replacement therapy; 

37



  2005 
Section 2  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

4

 (k) “workplace” means all or any part of a building, structure or 
other enclosed area in which employees perform the duties 
of their employment, whether or not members of the public 
have access to the building, structure or area as of right or 
by express or implied invitation, and includes reception 
areas, corridors, lobbies, stairwells, elevators, escalators, 
eating areas, washrooms, lounges, storage areas, laundry 
rooms, enclosed parking garages and work vehicles; 

 (l) “work vehicle” means a vehicle owned or leased by an 
employer and used by employees during the course of their 
employment. 

2005 cS-9.5 s1;2007 c40 s3;2009 cS-23.5 s26; 
2013 c24 s3;2013 cS-19.3 s25;2017 c21 s29 

Exclusions 

2(1)   Nothing in this Act affects the rights of aboriginal people 
respecting traditional aboriginal spiritual or cultural practices or 
ceremonies. 

(2)  Subject to section 4, this Act does not apply to a building, 
structure or vehicle, or a part of a building or structure, that is used 
as a private residence. 

 

Smoking prohibited 

3   Subject to section 5, no person shall smoke 

 (a) in a public place, 

 (b) in a workplace, 

 (b.1) in a vehicle in which a minor is present, 

 (c) in a public vehicle, or 

 (d) within a prescribed distance from a doorway, window or air 
intake of a public place or workplace. 

2005 cS-9.5 s3;2007 c40 s4;2013 c24 s4 

Prohibition re minors 

3.1(1)  No minor shall smoke a tobacco product 

 (a) in a place referred to in section 3,  

 (b) in any outdoor place or area to which members of the public 
have access as of right or by express or implied invitation, 
including a highway within the meaning of the Traffic 
Safety Act, 

38



  2005 
Section 4  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

5

 (c) in a school building, on school grounds or in any parking 
areas used in relation to a school building, or 

 (d) in a vehicle that is in a public place or in an outdoor place or 
area referred to in clauses (a) to (c). 

(2)  No minor shall possess or consume a tobacco product in a 
place referred to in subsection (1). 

2013 c24 s5 

Private residence 

4(1)  Subject to subsection (2), a private residence is a workplace if 
a home business is operated from the residence and the owner of 
the business has employees who work in the residence but do not 
live in the residence. 

(2)  Only that part of a private residence in which the business is 
operated is a workplace for the purposes of this Act. 

 

Exceptions  

5(1)  An in-patient or resident of a group living facility may smoke 
in a separate room in the facility if the room  

 (a) is designated as a smoking room by the manager, 

 (b) has floor-to-ceiling walls, a ceiling and doors that separate it 
physically from any adjacent area in which smoking is 
prohibited under this Act,  

 (c) has a separate ventilation system, and 

 (d) conforms to any requirements prescribed by the regulations. 

(2)  A registered guest, and a person invited by the guest, may 
smoke in a guest room of a hotel if the guest room 

 (a) is designed primarily as sleeping accommodation, 

 (b) is designated as a smoking room by the manager, 

 (c) has floor-to-ceiling walls, a ceiling and doors that separate it 
physically from any adjacent area in which smoking is 
prohibited under this Act, and 

 (d) conforms to any requirements prescribed by the regulations. 

(3) and (4)  Repealed 2007 c40 s5. 
2005 cS-9.5 s5;2007 c40 s5 

39



  2005 
Section 6  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

6

Duties of managers 

6  The manager of a place where smoking is prohibited under this 
Act must not permit a person to smoke in that place. 

Signs 

7(1)  The manager of a place where smoking is prohibited under 
this Act must ensure that signs indicating that smoking is 
prohibited are posted and continuously displayed in accordance 
with the regulations. 

(2)  The manager of a place where smoking is permitted under 
section 5 must ensure that signs indicating that smoking is 
permitted are posted and continuously displayed in accordance 
with the regulations. 

(2.1)  The manager of a place where tobacco products are sold or 
offered for sale must ensure that signs indicating that it is illegal to 
sell tobacco products to minors are posted and continuously 
displayed in accordance with the regulations. 

(3)  No person other than a manager or a person acting under the 
manager’s instructions shall remove, alter, deface, conceal or 
destroy a sign that is posted or displayed under this Act. 

2005 cS-9.5 s7;2013 c24 s8 

Tobacco not to be displayed 

7.1   No person shall, in any place where tobacco products are sold 
or offered for sale, display or permit the display of tobacco 
products in any manner that would permit a consumer to view or 
handle a tobacco product before purchasing it. 

2007 c40 s6 

Tobacco not to be advertised or promoted 

7.2(1)  No person shall advertise or promote tobacco products 

 (a) in any place where tobacco products are sold or offered for 
sale, or 

 (b) in any manner if the advertisement or promotion is visible 
from outside a place in which tobacco products are sold or 
offered for sale. 

(2)  Despite subsection (1), a place described in subsection (1)(a) 
may have one or more signs that lists the tobacco products offered 
for sale and their prices if the signs comply with the requirements 
prescribed by the regulations. 

2007 c40 s6 

40



  2005 
Section 7.21  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

7

Minimum package size  

7.21   No person shall sell or offer for sale a tobacco product 
designated in the regulations in a package containing less than the 
number of units prescribed by the regulations. 

2013 c24 s9 

Sale of tobacco in certain places prohibited 

7.3   No person shall sell tobacco products or offer tobacco 
products for sale in any of the following places: 

 (a) a health facility in which one or more health professionals 
regulated under the Health Professions Act or another 
enactment provide services; 

 (b) the campus of a public post-secondary institution under the 
Post-secondary Learning Act; 

 (c) a pharmacy; 

 (d) a retail store if 

 (i) a pharmacy is located in the retail store, or 

 (ii) customers of the pharmacy can enter the retail store 
directly or by use of a corridor or area used exclusively 
to connect the pharmacy with the retail store. 

2007 c40 s6 

Sale of flavoured tobacco products prohibited 

7.4(1)  In this section, “flavoured tobacco product” means a 
tobacco product that 

 (a) has a characterizing flavour,  

 (b) is represented as being flavoured, or 

 (c) is designated under the regulations as a flavoured tobacco 
product. 

(2)  No person shall sell or offer for sale a flavoured tobacco 
product. 

2013 c25 s2 

Furnishing tobacco products to a minor 

7.5(1)  No person shall furnish or offer to furnish a tobacco 
product to a minor in a place referred to in section 3.1(1). 

(2)  No person shall furnish or offer to furnish a tobacco product in 
a place referred to in section 3.1(1) to a person who appears to be 
less than 25 years of age unless he or she has required the person to 

41



  2005 
Section 8  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

8

provide a prescribed form of identification and is satisfied that the 
person is at least 18 years of age.  

(3)  It is a defence to a charge under subsection (1) that the 
defendant reasonably believed the person to whom the tobacco 
product was furnished or offered to be at least 18 years of age 
because 

 (a) the person provided a prescribed form of identification 
showing his or her age, and  

 (b) there was no apparent reason to doubt the authenticity of the 
identification or that it was issued to the person providing it. 

2013 c24 s10 

Offences  

8(1)  A person who contravenes section 3 or a provision in the 
regulations designated by the regulations as a provision the 
contravention of which is an offence is guilty of an offence and 
liable 

 (a) for a first offence, to a fine of not more than $1000, and 

 (b) for a 2nd or subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than 
$5000.   

(1.1)  A minor who contravenes section 3.1(1) or (2) is guilty of an 
offence and liable to a fine of not more than $100. 

(1.2)  A person who contravenes section 7.5 is guilty of an offence 
and liable 

 (a) for a first offence, to a fine of not more than $10 000, and 

 (b) for a 2nd or subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than 
$100 000. 

(2)  A person who contravenes section 6, 7, 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 or 7.4 is 
guilty of an offence and liable 

 (a) for a first offence, to a fine of not more than $10 000, and 

 (b) for a 2nd or subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than 
$100 000. 

(3)  A person who contravenes section 7.21 is guilty of an offence 
and liable 

 (a) for a first offence, to a fine of not more than $10 000, and 

42



  2005 
Section 8.1  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

9

 (b) for a 2nd or subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than 
$100 000.  

2005 cS-9.5 s8;2007 c40 s7;2013 c24 s11; 
2013 c24 s11;2013 c25 s2 

Description of offence — smoking 

8.1   In describing an offence respecting the smoking of a tobacco 
product as prohibited under section 3 or 3.1(1), it is not necessary 
to specify the kind, brand or name of the tobacco product used in 
the offence. 

2007 c40 s7;2013 c24 s12 

Description of offence — possession or consuming 

8.11   In describing an offence respecting the possession or 
consuming of a tobacco product by a minor as prohibited under 
section 3.1(2), it is not necessary to specify the kind, brand or name 
of the tobacco product used in the offence. 

2013 c24 s13 

Testimony of witness 

8.2   In a prosecution under this Act respecting the smoking of a 
tobacco product as prohibited under section 3 or 3.1(1), it is not 
necessary that a witness testify to the precise description, kind, 
brand or name of the tobacco product smoked. 

2007 c40 s7;2013 c24 s14 

Testimony of witness — offence by minor 

8.21   In a prosecution under this Act for the possession or 
consuming of a tobacco product by a minor as prohibited under 
section 3.1(2), it is not necessary that a witness testify to the 
precise description, kind, brand or name of the tobacco product 
possessed or consumed. 

2013 c24 s15 

Inference of tobacco product 

8.3   In a prosecution under this Act, the court trying the case may, 
in the absence of evidence to the contrary, infer that the product 
possessed, smoked or consumed was a tobacco product from the 
fact that a witness describes it by a name that is commonly used to 
describe a tobacco product. 

2007 c40 s7;2013 c24 s16 

Inference in respect of age 

8.31   Where a peace officer requests a person to produce proof of 
age and 

 (a) the person refuses to produce identification, or 

 (b) the person produces identification and the peace officer 
believes the identification to be false or altered, 

43



  2005 
Section 8.4  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

10

the court trying the case may, in the absence of evidence to the 
contrary, infer that the person charged is a minor. 

2013 c24 s17 

Certificate or report of analysis 

8.32(1)  The Minister may designate a person to act as an analyst 
with respect to any analysis or description of any tobacco product 
or tobacco-like product for the purposes of or in connection with 
this Act and the regulations. 

(2)  In a prosecution under this Act, a certificate or report of 
analysis furnished by an analyst designated under subsection (1) is 
admissible in evidence as proof, in the absence of evidence to the 
contrary, of the facts stated in it and of the authority of the person 
furnishing the certificate or report without proof of the designation 
or signature of the analyst. 

(3)  No certificate or report of an analyst may be received in 
evidence unless the party intending to produce it has given to the 
party against whom it is intended to be produced reasonable notice 
of that intention together with a copy of the certificate or report. 

(4)  A person to whom a notice of intention to produce is given 
under subsection (3) may, with the leave of the court, require the 
attendance of the analyst for the purpose of cross-examination. 

2013 c24 s18 

Prohibition order 

8.4(1)  If a retailer is convicted of a 3rd or subsequent offence for a 
contravention of section 7.1 or 7.2, the Minister may by order in 
writing prohibit the retailer from selling tobacco products at the 
place at which the offence took place, or at any place to which the 
business of the retailer is moved, for the period of time provided 
for in the order. 

(2)  A retailer who fails to comply with an order made under 
subsection (1) is guilty of an offence and liable to a fine of not 
more than $100 000 for each day during which non-compliance 
continues. 

2007 c40 s7 

Directors, etc. of corporations 

8.5   Where a corporation commits an offence under this Act, any 
officer, director or agent of the corporation who directed, 
authorized, assented to, acquiesced in or participated in the 
commission of the offence is guilty of that offence and liable to the 
penalty provided for the offence whether or not the corporation has 
been prosecuted for or convicted of that offence. 

2007 c40 s7 

44



  2005 
Section 8.6  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

11

Vicarious liability 

8.6   In a prosecution for an offence under this Act, it is sufficient 
proof of the offence to establish that it was committed by an 
employee or agent of the accused, whether or not the employee or 
agent is identified or has been prosecuted for or convicted of the 
offence, unless the accused establishes that the offence was 
committed without the accused’s knowledge and that the accused 
exercised all due diligence to prevent its commission. 

2007 c40 s7 

Regulations  

9(1)  The Lieutenant Governor in Council may make regulations 

 (a) for greater certainty, designating for the purposes of this 
Act, 

 (i) a place or class of place as a public place, workplace, 
hotel, public vehicle or restaurant, and 

 (ii) an outdoor place or area, or class of outdoor place or 
area, as an outdoor place or area to which members of 
the public have access as of right or by express or 
implied invitation; 

 (b) for the purposes of section 3(d), prescribing a distance from 
a doorway, window or air intake of a public place or 
workplace; 

 (c) for the purposes of section 5, prescribing requirements for 
smoking rooms; 

 (d) for the purposes of sections 7 and 7.2, respecting the form 
and contents, the manner of posting, the display and the 
location of signs; 

 (d.1)  designating a tobacco product as a flavoured tobacco 
product; 

 (d.2) respecting the exemption of a flavoured tobacco product 
from the prohibition in section 7.4(2); 

 (e) respecting the appointment or designation of inspectors and 
the powers, duties and obligations of inspectors, including, 
without limitation, regulations 

 (i) authorizing inspectors 

 (A) to make any inspection, investigation or inquiry that 
the inspector considers necessary, 

45



  2005 
Section 9  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

12

 (B) at any reasonable time to enter any place where 
tobacco products are sold, 

 (C) at any reasonable time to enter any place containing 
records that relate to the sale of tobacco products, 
and to inspect those records, 

 (D) to make copies of any records described in paragraph 
(C), and 

 (E) to seize any tobacco products and displays related to 
tobacco products for the purposes of administering 
and enforcing this Act and the regulations and any 
order made under section 8.4; 

 (ii) respecting the handling and disposition of seized tobacco 
products and displays related to tobacco products; 

 (e.1) prescribing the forms of identification for the purpose of 
section 7.5(2) and (3); 

 (e.2) respecting the training by retailers of their employees 
regarding compliance with this Act; 

 (e.3) respecting the reporting by retailers of their activities that 
are governed by this Act; 

 (f) respecting the form, contents and service of orders made 
under section 8.4; 

 (f.1) prescribing numbers of units for the purpose of section 7.21; 

 (f.2) designating tobacco products or classes of tobacco products 
to which section 7.21 applies; 

 (g) respecting the exemption of a person or a class of persons 
from the application of all or any of the provisions of this 
Act or the regulations;  

 (g.1) respecting the exemption of a place or a class of place from 
the application of all or any of the provisions of this Act or 
the regulations; 

 (h) designating provisions in the regulations the contravention 
of which is an offence; 

 (i) defining any word or phrase used but not defined in this 
Act; 

46



  2005 
Section 10  Chapter T-3.8 

 

TOBACCO AND SMOKING REDUCTION ACT 
 

13

 (j) respecting any matter that the Lieutenant Governor in 
Council considers necessary or advisable to carry out the 
purposes of this Act. 

(2)  A regulation made under subsection (1)(b) may be general or 
specific in its application and may prescribe different distances 
from a doorway, window or air intake with respect to different 
classes of public places or workplaces. 

2005 cS-9.5 s9;2007 c40 s8;2013 c24 s19;2013 c25 s4 

Municipal by-laws 

10(1)  Nothing in this Act affects a municipality’s power to make 
bylaws to regulate, restrict or prohibit smoking. 

(2)  Where there is a conflict between a provision of this Act and a 
provision of a municipal bylaw that regulates, restricts or prohibits 
smoking, the more restrictive provision prevails. 

 

Crown bound 

11   This Act binds the Crown. 
 

Repeal 

12   The Protection from Second-hand Smoke in Public 
Buildings Act is repealed. 

 

Review 

12.1   The Minister must commence a review of this Act within 5 
years after this section comes into force. 

2013 c24 s21 

Commencement 

13   This Act comes into force on Proclamation. 

(NOTE:   Proclaimed in force January 1, 2006.) 

47



Printed on Recycled Paper
*9780779805112*

48



Report

Cannabis Legalization in Redcliff

April 2018

W H AT  W E  H E A R D 

49



Federal legalization of cannabis is planned for summer 2018. The Town of 
Redcliff has a role to play in regulating the location of cannabis retail stores and 
production facilities, and places where cannabis can be consumed.

To collect input on cannabis, the Town released a 14 question survey to the 
public. The survey was open from March 6th - 31st 2018. The survey was posted 
on the Town website and Facebook page, and was covered by Chat News and 
the Cypress Courier. The goal of the survey was to provide Town administration 
and Council with an idea of public opinion to help guide decision-making and 
the development of cannabis regulations. 

Redcliff also hosted 2 open houses on March 15th and 30th from 3 - 7pm. The 
open houses were advertised on the Town website, Facebook page, Weekly 
Redcliff Report, and covered by the Cypress Courier. 

I N T RO D U C T I O N 

50



total responses

representing

age of respondents

respondent description

top ‘other ’ responses:

I live outside/near
Redcliff

I visit Redcliff

I own property in
Redcliff

I grew up/used to 
live in Redcliff

37.5%

25.00%

18.75%

18.75%

of 
the 

total Redcliff populationcompletion rate
4 6 7 8.3%9 3 %

Q2: which of the following best describes you? (check all that apply)

Q1: what is your age?

W H O  D I D  T H E  S U RV E Y ? 

under 18
0.21% 18-24

7.28%

25-34
20.77%

35-44
29.12%

45-54
20.77%

55-64
13.70%

65-74
7.07%

over 75
1.07%

83.51%

7.07%

17.34%

8.35%
3.21% 3.43%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

I live in Redcliff

I own a business in Redcliff

I work in Redcliff

I do not live in Redcliff

I am interested in opening a business in Redcliff

Other (please specify)

51



G AU G I N G  CA N NA B I S  I N  R E D C L I F F 
cannabis concerns 
Q3: what concerns do you have with cannabis legalization? (check all that apply)

top ‘other ’ responses:

No concerns

Keeping cannabis 
away from youth

Impaired driving

Crime/policing

Workplace safety

likeliness of purchasing from a retail store likeliness of purchasing online

56.00%

15.20%

9.60%

2.40%

2.40%

purchasing cannabis 
Q4 & Q5: once legal , how likely are you to purchase cannabis from a retail store or online?

takeaways and recommendations
Public consumption and odours from consumption were the largest citizen concerns. These concerns will be addressed 
through limiting places for the public consumption of cannabis, and ensuring  cannabis is not consumed near children. 
While crime, policing, and workplace safety were mentioned under ‘other’, it should be of note that these concerns fall 
within the authority of the provincial government and the RCMP. 

Cannabis retail store location was also a large concern. Store locations are addressed in further survey questions.

very unlikely, 
53.10%

somewhat 
unlikely, 6.00%

unsure, 10.49%

somewhat likely, 
11.56%

very likely, 
18.84%

very unlikely , 
59.74%

somewhat 
unlikely, 4.71%

usure, 16.27%

somewhat 
likely, 9.64%

very likely , 
9.64%

44.33%

63.81%

20.13%

50.75%

36.40%

23.55%
26.77%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%
location of cannabis stores
public consumption of cannabis
hours of operation of cannabis stores
odours from public consumption
neighbours growing or consuming cannabis
signs and advertising of cannabis stores
Other

52



CA N NA B I S  R E TA I L  S TO R E S 
preferred locations 
Q6: do you have preferred areas cannabis stores SHOULD be located? (check all that apply)

top ‘other ’ responses:

Don’t want stores 
in Redcliff

Location doesn’t 
matter

Away from schools 
& youth

Away from business

North side of the 
Highway

Not hidden

45.65%

20.65%

6.52%

3.26%

3.26%

2.17%

takeaways and recommendations
Nearly 80% of respondents did not want cannabis stores in residential areas. This will be addressed by prohibiting cannabis 
stores in neighbourhood commercial zones, and in the 2 general commercial district lots currently in Redcliff’s residential 
area. Respondents preferred cannabis stores in general commercial and light industrial areas over downtown. Buffers 
from sensitive uses will minimize potential downtown locations. A buffer from the highway will also be considered.

non-preferred locations 
Q7: do you have preferred areas cannabis stores SHOULD NOT be located? (check all that apply)

top ‘other ’ responses:

Near schools & 
youth

Location doesn’t 
matter

Don’t want stores 
in Redcliff

Pubs & bars

47.87%

26.37%

15.38%

2.20%

39.95%

26.64% 27.77%

41.76%

20.77%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%
Light Industrial Areas

Highway Commercial Areas

Downtown Commercial Areas

General Commercial Areas (Co-op on Mitchell St.)

Other

79.68%

23.48%

31.83%

40.63%

20.54%

14.67%

21.22%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%
Residential Areas

Horticultural Areas

General Commercial Areas (Co-op on Mitchell St.)

Downtown Commercial Area

Highway Commercial Areas

Light Industrial Areas

Other

53



CA N NA B I S  R E TA I L  S TO R E S 
separation distances 
Q8: do you think the 100m separation from sensitive uses, set by the province, is adequate for Redcliff? 

top ‘other ’ responses:

Don’t want 
cannabis stores in 

Redcliff

Separation 
distances should 

be the same as for 
liquor stores

16.67%

16.67%

takeaways and recommendations
A map of the 100m setbacks will be created to get a better understanding of appropriate separation distances in 
Redcliff. The majority of respondents did not feel separation from other cannabis stores, liquor stores, and smoke/vape 
shops was necessary; therefore, separation from these uses will not be considered. The Town will add to the province’s 
recommended list of places requiring separation distances, considering adding parks, daycares, and all health facilities.  

separation places and locations 
Q9: what places should have a minimum separation distance from cannabis stores? (check all that apply)

top ‘other ’ responses:

Don’t want stores 
in Redcliff

Follow the same 
rules as liquor stores

Pubs & bars

20.00%

20.00%

10.00%

YES, the 
separation 
distance of 

100m is 
adequate, 

36.12%

NO, the 
separation 

distance should 
be greater than 

100m, 51.92%

NO, the separation 
distance should 

be less than 100m, 
2.48%

NO, there 
should be no 
separation 

distance, 4.06%

Other , 
5.42%

44.24%

51.02%

80.36%

56.43%

79.68%

60.50%

16.03%
12.64% 11.29%

48.98%

9.26%
4.51%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%
provincial health care facility
any health care facility
school building
land reserved for a future school
daycare/childcare facility
public park
liquor store
other cannabis retail store
smoke/vape shop
residential building
no buildings/facilities
Other

54



CA N NA B I S  R E TA I L  S TO R E S 
operating hours  
Q10: are the operating hours of 10am - 2am, the same as for liquor stores, adequate for Redcliff? 

top ‘other ’ responses:

Don’t want 
legalized cannabis 

in Redcliff

Indifferent/unsure/
don’t care

38.89%

33.33%

The majority of respondents (over 61%) indicated the operating hours of 10am - 2am set by the province are appropriate. 
Further restricting operating hours would require Redcliff to pass an operating hours bylaw singling out cannabis stores.

The operating hours of 10am - 2am are maximums, meaning each individual store may operate with more restricted 
hours if they choose. 

The Town will therefore not consider passing an additional bylaw to further restrict operating hours. 

takeaways and recommendations 

YES, the 
operating hours 

for cannabis 
stores from 

10am-2am is 
adequate, 

61.68%

NO, the 
operating hours 

for cannabis 
stores should be 
more restrictive 

than liquor stores, 
34.24%

Other , 4.08%

55



CA N NA B I S  C O N S U M P T I O N 
acceptable locations 
Q11: what places do you think are ACCEPTABLE for people to consume cannabis? (check all that apply) 

takeaways and recommendations
The majority of respondents felt consumption on private property was acceptable, and consumption in parks, sidewalks, 
and public areas was unacceptable. Redcliff will consider restricting cannabis similar to alcohol to mirror this feedback 
(i.e. you cannot consumer while on the street, sidewalk, or in public). 

unacceptable locations 
Q12: what places do you think are UNACCEPTABLE for people to consume cannabis? (check all that apply)

top ‘other ’ responses:

Near schools/
children

Allow it everywhere

Same restrictions as 
tobacco

Public areas 

Everywhere (don’t 
want legalization)

Same restrictions as 
alcohol

39.74%

15.38%

11.54%

8.97%

7.69%

5.13%

top ‘other ’ responses:

Nowhere 

Where alcohol 
consumption is 

permitted

Not in public

In designated 
areas

Away from youth

Cannabis cafes

24.53%

15.09%

9.43%

7.55%

5.66%

5.66%

69.72%

92.20%

57.80%

9.17%
14.22%

45.87%

10.55% 12.16%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%
in their backyard

in their own home

on their front porch/balcony/patio

in a public park

while walking down the street

in areas currently designated for smoking tobacco

at a public outdoor event

Other

17.20%

22.94%

76.38%
72.02%

36.47%

80.28%

17.89%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

in their backyard

on their front
porch/balcony/patio
in a public park

while walking down the street

in areas currently designated
for smoking tobacco
at a public event

Other

56



CA N NA B I S  C O N S U M P T I O N 
public events  
Q13: should cannabis consumption be allowed during public outdoor events like Redcliff Days? 

top ‘other ’ responses:

Regulated the 
same as tobacco

Regulated the 
same as alcohol 

31.25%

25.00%

The majority of respondents (over 60%) indicated cannabis use should not be allowed at all during public outdoor events.  
The Town will therefore consider banning cannabis consumption at public outdoor events like Redcliff Days.

takeaways and recommendations 

YES, cannabis use should be 
allowed anywhere during 

these events, 4.82%

YES, cannabis use 
should only be 

allowed in 
designated areas 

during these 
events, 31.42%

NO, cannabis use 
should not be 
allowed at all 
during these 

events, 60.09%

Other , 3.67%

57



A D D I T I O NA L  C O M M E N T S 
comment box
Q14: do you have any additional comments you would like to add regarding cannabis in Redcliff?

total responses in the 
comment box:

comments were categorized into 
similar responses, with the most 

popular and repeated responses 
depicted in the adjacent chart

127

Comment: Banning cannabis sale and consumption in Redcliff

A: According to current legal advice, Redcliff and other municipalities do not have the authority to outright ban or 	      	
    prohibit the sale and consumption of cannabis. Cannabis is being legalized by the federal government, 		      	
    and Redcliff’s bylaws and regulations must conform to federal laws and regulations. 

Comment: Cannabis consumption in specialized cannabis cafes or lounges

A: The federal and provincial governments have indicated cannabis cafes or lounges will not be legal in summer 2018, 		
     nor will the sale of cannabis edibles. However, cafes and edibles will be legal within 1 year of recreational cannabis    	
     becoming legal. If the federal government sticks to the cannabis timelines, we can therefore expect cannabis 	     	
     cafes and edibles to be legal in summer 2019.

Comment: Cannabis store locations and separation distances from sensitive uses should be regulated the 		
	      same as liquor stores

A: The provincial government does not have any minimum separation distances from liquor stores and sensitive uses    	      	
     such as schools and parks. Regulating cannabis stores the same as liquor stores would therefore mean there 			
     would be no separation distances. 

Comment: As the “Greenhouse Capital of the Prairies” Redcliff should embrace legalized cannabis and 		
	      greenhouses should grow it

A: Producers and growers of recreational cannabis must be licensed by Health Canada. There are strict regulations 		
     regarding the security of cannabis production facilities. The typical glass and plastic greenhouses in Redcliff would 	        	
    not meet Health Canada requirements for cannabis production facilities. Therefore, one could not simply switch their 	
    plants to cannabis plants. 

clearing up comments and questions brought up by survey respondents 

24.41%

17.32%

15.75%
14.96%

8.66%
7.87%

3.15%
2.36%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%
don't agree with legalization/don’t want stores & consumption in Redcliff
treat cannabis like alcohol (i.e. no consumption on sidewalks/streets)
cannabis should not be consumed near/around minors
cannabis use should not infringe on the rights of others (i.e. second-hand smoke)
in favour of/excited for legalization
Redcliff should embrace increased business opportunity and revenue
concerned about crime and policing
concerned about impaired driving

58



59



Selected Tobacco/Smoking Restrictions in Alberta 

Compiled by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) – April 2018 

  
  
Municipality 

 
Tobacco 

Sales 
Licensing 

  Smoke-Free Outdoor Spaces   
Smoke-Free 
Hotel/Motel 

Guest Rooms 

Smoking Materials Prohibited 

Playgrounds Parks Sports 
fields and 
facilities 

Beaches Outdoor 
markets 

Outdoor 
events 

Trails Tobacco 
products 

 

Waterpipes, 
hookahs and/ 
or marijuana 

Electronic 
cigarettes 

Airdrie              

Beaumont              

Bonnyville              

Calgary              

Camrose            

Canmore              

Cardston            

Coalhurst            

Chestermere            

Cochrane            

Cold Lake              

Devon              

Edmonton              

Grande Prairie               

Hinton              

Jasper              

Lamont             

Lethbridge               

Lloydminster             

Medicine Hat               

Nanton             

Okotoks              

Red Deer              

Spruce Grove               

St. Albert              

Stettler              

Strathmore              

Sylvan Lake              

Taber              

Wood Buffalo              

60

https://www.airdrie.ca/getDocument.cfm?ID=200
https://www.airdrie.ca/getDocument.cfm?ID=200
http://www.beaumont.ab.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/103
http://www.beaumont.ab.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/103
http://town.bonnyville.ab.ca/images/stories/pdf/Bylaws/Bylaw_1433-15-Smoke_Free_Bylaw_in_Public_Places_and_Workplaces.pdf
http://town.bonnyville.ab.ca/images/stories/pdf/Bylaws/Bylaw_1433-15-Smoke_Free_Bylaw_in_Public_Places_and_Workplaces.pdf
http://www.calgary.ca/CA/city-clerks/Documents/Legislative-services/Bylaws/57m92-Smoking.pdf
http://www.calgary.ca/CA/city-clerks/Documents/Legislative-services/Bylaws/57m92-Smoking.pdf
http://www.calgary.ca/CA/city-clerks/Documents/Legislative-services/Bylaws/32m98-BusinessLicence.pdf?noredirect=1http://www.calgary.ca/CA/city-clerks/Documents/Legislative-services/Bylaws/32m98-BusinessLicence.pdf?noredirect=1
https://camrose.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/search?keywords=smoking&location=620&preview=28204
file:///C:/Users/Erin/Downloads/2010-19_smoking_control_bylaw%20(2).pdf
file:///C:/Users/Erin/Downloads/2010-19_smoking_control_bylaw%20(2).pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/54b9818ae4b0023bcfc8e707/t/5616ce2ce4b06489ba880404/1444335148091/Bylaw+1626+Smoking.pdf
http://coalhurst.ca/wp-content/uploads/2011/01/Smoke-Free-Playgrounds-and-Athletic-Fields-374-14.pdf
https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/ashnew/pages/213/attachments/original/1524092344/Chestermere_smoking_bylaw.pdf?1524092344
https://www.cochrane.ca/DocumentCenter/View/3582
https://coldlake.civicweb.net/document/4083/554-PL-15,%20Regulate%20Smoking%20in%20Public%20Places.PDF?handle=689EE11C2DF44B2287D2E3B91C32F5D3
https://coldlake.civicweb.net/document/4083/554-PL-15,%20Regulate%20Smoking%20in%20Public%20Places.PDF?handle=689EE11C2DF44B2287D2E3B91C32F5D3
http://www.town.devon.ab.ca/Portals/0/Docs/CLS/Bylaws/Smoking%20Bylaw%20Office%20Consolidation.pdf?WebReportPage=5&sID=1251
https://www.edmonton.ca/documents/Bylaws/C14614.pdf
https://www.edmonton.ca/documents/Bylaws/C14614.pdf
https://www.edmonton.ca/documents/C13138.pdf
http://www.cityofgp.com/index.aspx?recordid=403&page=788
http://www.cityofgp.com/index.aspx?recordid=403&page=788
http://www.hinton.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/549
http://www.hinton.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/549
http://www.hinton.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/549
http://jasper-alberta.com/documentcenter/view/137
http://jasper-alberta.com/documentcenter/view/137
http://files.townlife.com/public/uploads/documents/14728/Smoking_Bylaw.pdf
http://www.lethbridge.ca/City-Government/Bylaws/Documents/Parks%205651.pdf
http://www.lethbridge.ca/City-Government/Bylaws/Documents/Parks%205651.pdf
http://www.lloydminster.ca/DocumentCenter/View/13848
http://www.lloydminster.ca/DocumentCenter/View/13848
https://www.city.medicine-hat.ab.ca/home/showdocument?id=4747
https://www.city.medicine-hat.ab.ca/home/showdocument?id=4747
http://www.nanton.ca/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_03072016-198
http://www.okotoks.ca/sites/default/files/pdfs/publications/Business%20License%2020-13.pdf
http://www.okotoks.ca/sites/default/files/pdfs/publications/Business%20License%2020-13.pdf
http://www.okotoks.ca/sites/default/files/pdfs/publications/Business%20License%2020-13.pdf
http://www.reddeer.ca/media/reddeerca/city-government/bylaws/Smoke-Free-Bylaw.pdf
http://www.reddeer.ca/media/reddeerca/city-government/bylaws/Smoke-Free-Bylaw.pdf
http://www.sprucegrove.org/Assets/pdf/bylaws/smoking_bylaw_C_470_03.pdf
http://www.sprucegrove.org/Assets/pdf/bylaws/smoking_bylaw_C_470_03.pdf
http://www.sprucegrove.org/Assets/pdf/bylaws/open_space_bylaw_C_227_94.PDF
http://www.sprucegrove.org/Assets/pdf/bylaws/open_space_bylaw_C_227_94.PDF
http://www.sprucegrove.org/Assets/pdf/bylaws/open_space_bylaw_C_227_94.PDF
https://stalbert.ca/uploads/legislative/Consolidation_Bylaw_1-2004_Smoking_Bylaw_May_15,_2017.pdf
https://stalbert.ca/uploads/legislative/Consolidation_Bylaw_1-2004_Smoking_Bylaw_May_15,_2017.pdf
http://issuu.com/townofstettler/docs/smokefree_bylaw
http://issuu.com/townofstettler/docs/smokefree_bylaw
http://www.strathmore.ca/include/get.php?nodeid=384
http://www.strathmore.ca/include/get.php?nodeid=384
https://sylvanlake.civicweb.net/document/9131/Smoke%20Free.pdf?handle=BB4363CB92FF44F8AF5E86B690DB7092
https://sylvanlake.civicweb.net/document/9131/Smoke%20Free.pdf?handle=BB4363CB92FF44F8AF5E86B690DB7092
http://www.taber.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/350
http://www.taber.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/350
http://www.taber.ca/DocumentCenter/Home/View/350
http://www.rmwb.ca/Assets/Departments/Legislative+and+Legal+Services/Bylaws/SmokeFree.pdf
http://www.rmwb.ca/Assets/Departments/Legislative+and+Legal+Services/Bylaws/SmokeFree.pdf


61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



TOWN OF REDCLIFF 
BY-LAW 988/93 

A BY-LAW OF THE TOWN OF REDCLIFF TO AUTHORIZE THE ADOPTION OF A 
CREST. 

WHEREAS, Section 14 7 of the Municipal Government Act empowers 
council with the approval of the Minister of Municipal Affairs to 
adopt a Crest; and 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Redcliff considers it 
desirable to adopt an official Crest for the Town. 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF REDCLIFF IN THE PROVINCE 
OF ALBERTA DULY ASSEMBLED ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Crest as set out in Schedule "A" and Schedule 
"B" attached hereto and forming a part of this By-Law is 
hereby adopted by the Council as the official Crest of 
the Town of Redcliff, in the Province of Alberta, subject 
to the approval of the Minister of Municipal Affairs. 

2. Application for use of the Town of Redcliff Crest shall 
be made in writing addressed to the Municipal Manager. 
The Municipal Manager shall provide written authorization 
for . the use of the Town Crest, upon passage of motion by 
Red~liff Town Council authorizing same. This 
authorization will be given for only specified purposes 
and there shall be no deviation in design from that shown 
in Schedule "A" or "B" attached. 

3. Any person who does not have the authorization of 
Redcliff Town Council for use of the Town of Redcliff 
Crest or any emblem so nearly resembling it as to be 
calculated to deceive is guilty of an offence and liable 
to a fine of $50.00 for every day during which the 
offence continues. Under no circumstance shall any 
person contravening any provision of this By-Law be 
subject to the penalty of imprisonment. 

4. The adoption of this Crest is effective upon the date of 
the final passing of this By-Law. 

5. By-Law No. 483 is hereby repealed. 

READ A THIRD AND FINAL TIME AND PASSED 
A.D. 1993. · 

OF MARCH 

SECRETARY 

APPROVAL OF THE MINISTER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS THIS THE Lf. th DAY OF 
A,) n y t.. M la i-.f' A . D . , 19 9 3 . 

·, 

/~rMINISTER OF MUNICIP~L AFFAIRS 

74



.. ~·. 

rr1 
0 
c: 
r 
rr1 

75



. . 

Alt:x?Jra 
M UNICIPAL AFFAIRS 

4 =~~~~ 
l..QWIJ DJ IIRQJJra 

Mr. Terry Hurlbut 
Municipal Secretary 
Town of Redcliff 
P.O. Box 40 
Redcliff, Alberta 
TOJ 2PO 

Dear Mr. Hurlbut: 

CityCentre, 10155 - 102 Street 
Edmonton, Al berta 

Canada T5J 4L4 

November 4, 1993 

In Replying Please Quote: 

Your letter of October 20, 1993 to Honourable Stephen West regarding adoption of 
an official crest has been referred to me. 

In accordance with section 5(1) of the Department of Municipal Affairs Act and 
Ministerial Order No. 488/93, I have been delegated the authority to approve 
adoption of a municipal crest on the Minister's behalf. I have therefore approved 
Town of Redcliff By-Law 988/93 and am returning the document as requested. 

Please contact me if any further information is required. 

Att. 

cc: Hon. Stephen C. West 

Yours truly, 

-c.._ -~ 

Brian Quickfall 
Executive Director 
Local Government 
Development Branch 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



Page 1 of 4 POLICY NO.  138 
 

Approved by Council: 

IMPAIRMENT AT WORK POLICY 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Redcliff is committed to the health and safety of its employees, contractors, council, 
residents, and public  

Occupational Health and Safety legislation requires that the Town of Redcliff provide a safe, 
healthy and productive work environment. Many aspects working for or carrying on official 
business for the Town, require mental and physical alertness, accurate and quick reflexes along 
with sound judgement and decision making. Any substance or condition that may cause 
impairment to these abilities can introduce unnecessary workplace hazards and create health 
and safety risk that can lead to critical workplace incidents that may have severe consequences. 
The use of drugs, alcohol, medications or other substances and/or physical or mental health 
conditions can impair performance having significant adverse impacts and create significant risk 
to people, property and reputation. 

Employees also have responsibilities under the Alberta Occupational Health and Safety Act. 
Legal use of recreational cannabis, alcohol, prescribed substances, including medical cannabis, 
and/or over the counter medication, does not mean one can be impaired at work. 

DEFINITIONS 

(a) Employee:  means any person hired/employed by the Town of Redcliff, 
including elected officials, volunteers, and appointed members of 
committees/boards/commissions. 

(b) Fit for Duties: means an employee is not impaired or under the influence of any 
substance that adversely impacts an employee’s judgement and/or performance,  

(c) Potentially Impairing Medications: includes but are not limited to: 

 Antihistamines (Benadryl) 
 Motion sickness drugs  (Gravol) 
 Narcotic  analgesics  (Percocet, Tylenol 3) 
 Anti-convulsants (Diazepam) 
 Cold tablets/cough mixtures (Advil cold and sinus) 
 Muscle relaxants  (Robaxacet) 
 Anti-inflammatories (Ibuprofen) 
 Anti-psychotic (Ciozapine) 
 Anti-depressants (Prozac) 

(d) Substance Use/Abuse:  the use of potentially impairing substance to the point 
that it adversely affects: 

 performance or safety, either directly through intoxication or hangover, or  
 indirectly through social or health problems.  

83

http://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=O02P1.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779800490&display=html


Page 2 of 4 POLICY NO.  138 
 IMPAIRMENT AT WORK POLICY 

Generally speaking, substance abuse is considered to occur when a drug is taken 
without medical reason, or if a substance impairs or jeopardizes the health or 
safety of oneself or others.  Abuse can occur by using a substance too much, too 
often, for the wrong reasons, at the wrong time, or at the wrong place. Substance 
abuse can also occur as a result of dependency on a legitimate prescription or 
over-the-counter medication to control pain from an illness, injury or surgery. 

(e) Impairing Substances:   include, but are not limited to: 

 Alcohol  (wine, beer, spirits) 
 Cannabis  (marijuana, hashish) 
 Depressants  (sleeping  medicines, sedatives, some tranquilizers) 
 Hallucinogens (LSD, PCP, mescaline) 
 Inhalants  (hydrocarbons, solvents, gasoline) 
 Opiates (morphine, heroin,  codeine,  some pain medications) 
 Stimulants (cocaine, amphetamines) 

(f) Town Premises: Any Town owned, leased, operated, or maintained facility, 
property or equipment. 

POLICY 

 The Town expects Employees to report to work ready to perform their assigned duties 
and functions without impairment and remain fit to work. 

 The use of legal but impairing substances, alcohol and/or cannabis for recreational 
purposes on Town premises or work sites during an employees working hours is not 
permitted.  

 The use of alcohol and/or cannabis on Town premises for work-related social functions 
must have the prior approval of the Municipal Manager or their designate; 

 The use of medications (prescribed or over the counter) by an employee while on duty is 
permissible as long as the employee does not become impaired by the medication.   

 The Town of Redcliff recognizes alcohol and other substances have addictive 
properties.  Anyone suffering from addiction to alcohol or any other substance will be 
provided reasonable support to assist them in their recovery as the Town recognizes 
alcohol and other substance abuse as a treatable illness. 

 The Town reserves the right to investigate any situation where there are reasonable 
grounds to believe that alcohol, cannabis or illicit drugs are present on the work site, 
or that an employee is in an unfit condition due to use of alcohol, drugs or other 
impairing substances. 

 Employees suspected to be or found to be in violation of this policy may be dealt with 
utilizing the “Code of Conduct for Employees Policy” and the “Council Code of Conduct 
Bylaw” which could include disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

84



Page 3 of 4 POLICY NO.  138 
 IMPAIRMENT AT WORK POLICY 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Department Heads and Supervisors are to: 

(a) Clearly communicate expectations  with respect to alcohol, drug and 
substance use; 

(b) Maintain the confidentiality of employee information with respect to any 
reported use; 

(c) Take appropriate steps to respond to reports of impairment by ensuring that 
an employee who appears to be in an unfit condition or who could endanger 
themselves or others does not perform any work; 

(d) Ensure the employee gets home safely or has safe transportation off the 
work site if the supervisor becomes aware that an employee at work is unable 
to perform their duties due to impairment;   

Observations which may lead to reasonable determination of impairment 
include, but not limited to: 

 odour of alcohol, cannabis or any other substance 
 slurred speech 
 glassy eyes 
 unsteadiness in walking, standing, etc. 
 flushed face 
 disoriented and or drowsy 
 accidents, incidents or injuries 
 repeated errors in job performance 
 excessive absenteeism or lateness 
 credible complaints of drug and/or alcohol use at work 

(e) Document the incident and notifies Human Resources of the issue to determine 
the appropriate course of action; 

(f) Encourage employees to seek assistance from the appropriate resources (e.g. 
Human Resources, Employee and Family Assistance Plan). 

 Human Resources is to: 

(a) Coordinate training for department heads/supervisors on how to recognize the 
signs and symptoms of impaired behavior and substance abuse; 

(b) Assist department heads/supervisors with reporting of impairment; 

(c) Work with department heads/supervisors and employees to review the 
circumstances involved in a report of impairment and to determine the appropriate 
course of action. 

  

85



Page 4 of 4 POLICY NO.  138 
 IMPAIRMENT AT WORK POLICY 

 Employees are to: 

(a) Report to work fit for duty and remain fit for duty while on Town business and/or 
premises, including when on-call or performing unscheduled work; 

(b) Take the appropriate steps to ensure that a co-worker who appears to be unfit or 
who could endanger themselves or others, does not perform such work, and 
inform the applicable supervisor immediately; 

(c) Shall promptly advise their supervisor of any potential safety problems or 
behavioral concerns. The response shall focus on controlling any safety 
risks, addressing the Policy violation and reducing the likelihood of 
reoccurrence through effective and timely referral, assessment, and 
treatment, as required; 

(d) While on Town business the consumption of alcohol and/or cannabis by an 
employee is permitted if: 

 It is consumed at an event where it is socially acceptable, 
 It is done in a responsible manner, 
 After the formal business of the day has been concluded, 
 If the employee is not on duty or on call, 
 Is not consumed to the point of intoxication; 

(e) Investigate with their pharmacist and/or doctor regarding the impact of both 
prescribed and over-the-counter potentially impairing medications on fitness for 
duty before reporting to work; 

(f) Upon request, present medical documentation to their supervisor or Human 
Resources regarding the details of any medication that may potentially impact 
work performance; 

(g) Cooperate with an investigation into a violation of this policy. 

 

 Municipal Manager is to: 

(a) Consider, and where appropriate, approve the use of alcohol on Town 
premises for work-related social functions. 

 

86



87



0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

T
O

N
N

E
S

REDCLIFF/CYPRESS REGIONAL LANDFILL
2018 VS 5 YEAR AVERAGE 
TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2018 5 YR AVE

88



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

TOWN WCC/WM PRIV COUNTY

To
n

n
e

Hauler

REDCLIFF/CYPRESS REGIONAL LANDFILL
DELIVERIES BY SOURCE 2014-2018

TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

89



0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

To
n

n
e

REDCLIFF/CYPRESS REGIONAL LANDFILL  
DELIVERIES IN TONNES 2014-2018

TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

90



  

 COUNCIL IMPORTANT MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date 
 

Meeting / Event Where / Information 

 
Tuesday 

October 9, 2018 
 

 
Council Meeting 

 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

7:00 p.m. 
 

 
October 22, 2018 

 

 
Organizational Meeting 

 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

6:30 p.m. 
 

 
October 22, 2018 

 

 
Council Meeting 

 

 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

7:00 p.m. 
 

 
October 31, 2018 

 

 
Special Council Meeting 

2019 Budget Review 

 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

 
November 3, 2018 

 

 
Special Council Meeting 

2019 Budget Review 

 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

91


	_council_meeting coverpage_October 9, 2018
	Council Agenda October 9, 2018
	Item 1 C_COUNCIL AP LIST_October 9, 2018
	Item 1 D_August Bank Summary_October 9, 2018
	Item 2 A_2018 September 24 Council Minutes (DRAFT)
	Item 2 B_Redcliff Library Board July 31 2018 Minutes
	Item 2 C_Redcliff Recreation Board meeting Minutes October 2 2018
	Item 3 A_1_RFD Bylaw 1868 Smoke-Free Bylaw_ENG_October 9, 2018
	Item 3 A_2_Attachment_Bylaw 1868 Smoke-Free Bylaw_FOR 3rd Reading
	Item 3 A_3_Attachment_Bylaw 1868_Alberta Tobacco & Smoking Reduction Act
	Item 3 A_4_Attachment_Bylaw 1868_What We Heard Report - Survey Response Results
	Item 3 A_5_Attachment_Bylaw 1868_AB restrictions on smoking_product type & location
	Item 3 A_6_Attachment_Bylaw 1868_ASH_municipal_bylaw_chart_April_2018
	Item 4 A_1_RFD_Redcliff_Cypress_Regional Waste Management Auth_Loan Request_FIN_October 9, 2018
	Item 4 A_2_Attachment_Loan Request_Authority's September 6, 2018 Minutes
	Item 4 A_3_Attachment_Loan Request_MGA Section 264
	Item 4 A_4_Attachment_Loan Request_Copy of Letter of Understanding_Authority 2014 Loan
	Item 4 B_RFD_Sewer Mains Closed Circuit Television_CCTV_ Inspections_ENG_PS_October 9, 2018
	Item 4 C_1_RFD_Youth Dart League_LEG_October 9, 2018
	Item 4 C_2_RFD_Attachment1_Bylaw No. 988 (1993) Adoption of Crest (Logo)
	Item 4 C_3_RFD_Attachment2_Youth Dart League_Correspondence_October 9, 2018
	Item 4 D_RFD_Sanitary Sewer Lift Station 5 Ave_2 St_ENG_October 9, 2018
	Item 5 A_1_RFD_Policy 138 Impairment at Work_FIN_October 9, 2018
	Item 5 A_2_Attachment_Policy_138 Impairment at Work
	Item 6 A_AB Municipal Affairs letter dated September 11, 2018 re MSI_October 9, 2018
	Item 7 A_1_Landfill Graphs_2018 v. 5 year average to September, 2018_October 9, 2018
	Item 7 A_2_Landfill Graphs_Deliveries by Source 2014-2018_October 9, 2018
	Item 7 A_3_Landfill Graphs_Deliveries by Tonnes 2014-2018_October 9, 2018
	Item 7 B_Council Important Meetings & Events_October 9, 2018


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (Adobe RGB \0501998\051)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Sheetfed Coated v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages false
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /None
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages false
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /None
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages false
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /None
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000500044004600206587686353ef901a8fc7684c976262535370673a548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200208fdb884c9ad88d2891cf62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef653ef5728684c9762537088686a5f548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200204e0a73725f979ad854c18cea7684521753706548679c300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b370c2a4d06cd0d10020d504b9b0d1300020bc0f0020ad50c815ae30c5d0c11c0020ace0d488c9c8b85c0020c778c1c4d560002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken voor kwaliteitsafdrukken op desktopprinters en proofers. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        9
        9
        9
        9
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /ClipComplexRegions false
        /ConvertStrokesToOutlines true
        /ConvertTextToOutlines false
        /GradientResolution 600
        /LineArtTextResolution 3000
        /PresetName (280 sublima)
        /PresetSelector /UseName
        /RasterVectorBalance 1
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 6
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




